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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Scrabble Entertainment Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss {including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and of its profit and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to repott that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accouriting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
ofthe assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Congclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “*Annexure A™ a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company s0
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
staternents of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a)

b)

d)

e)

The Company has no pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 in its financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium ot
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:
s directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by ot on behalf of the Company
e provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(*“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:
o directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party
» provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d} (i) and (d) {ii) contain any material misstatement.

The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with
Section 123 of the Act.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No:; 101248W/W-100022

Y

Rajesh Mehra

FPartner

Mumbai Membership Number: 103145
26 May 2022 ICAT UDIN: 22103145AJRKUG9635
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report the following:

(D (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(B
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(i)
(a)

(b)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner
over a period of two years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the programme, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property,
plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for helding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.,

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The Company has maintained
proper records of inventory. There were no discrepancies noticed on verification between
the physical stock and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each
class of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v}

(vi)

{vii)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The
Company has made investments in companies during the year. The Company has not made
any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans and
advances in the nature of loans. Thus, reporting under this clause is not applicabte.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans and
advances in the nature of loans. Thus, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdues of
existing loans given to the same party. Hence clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable.

(H According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans that
are repayable on demand.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section
186 of the Act in respect of investments made to the parties covered under Section 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act, or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of
the Act for any of the services rendered/products traded in by the Company.

(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the vear since effective | July 2017, these statutory dues have been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in
respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (*GST"), Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
(b) According to the information and explanatiens given to us, there are no dues of Income-tax,
Goods and Service tax, duty of customs which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
The following dues of Value added tax and Sales tax have not been deposited by the Company on
account of disputes:

Name of the statute Nature of Amount Period (Financial Forum where the dispute is
dues* (Rs in year) pending
lakhs)*
Odisha CST Act 1956 Sales Tax 2016-17 and 2017-1g DUty Commissioner of
4 Sales Tax
West Bengal CST Act 1956 Sales Tax 2017-18 Senior Joint Commissioner
9 (Appeals
Andhra Pradesh CST Act Appellate Joint
1956 Sales Tax 7 2016-17 Commissioner {ST)
Andhra Pradesh VAT Act, . } Appellate Deputy
2005 Sales Tax i0l 2014-17 Commissioner {CT)
Appellate Jr. / Deputy
Gujarat CST Act 1956 Sales Tax 6 2015-16 and 2017-18  Commissioner Sales Tax
(€T
Maharashtra VAT Act, 2002 N -
and Maharashtra CST Act Sales Tax 2017-18 Joint Commissioner of State
1956 8 Tax (Appeal)

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-
tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix)
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(N

The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
ot financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, paragraph
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

)

(xi)
(@)

(b)

(©)

{xii}

(xiii)

(xiv)

(a)

(@) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report has been filed with the Central
Government under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act read with rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower comptaints received by the
Company during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a

Nidhi Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions during the year with the related parties are in compliance with
the provisions of Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act, wherever applicable. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in these financial statements..

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under

(xv)

{xvi)

(xvii)

audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year however has incurred cash losses in
the immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 336 lakhs.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(d) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred the unspent amount to a Special
Account within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with
Section 135(6) of the said Act as below:

Rs in takhs

Amount unspent on | Amount transferred to
Financial corporate social | Special Account within
Year* responsibility activities | 30 days from the end of
for “On-going Projects” | the Financial Year

Amount transferred afier the
due date (specify the date of
transfer)

31 March 22 108 118 -

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

"~

Rajesh Mehra

Mumbai Partner
26 May 2022 Membership No: 103145

ICAI UDIN: 22103 145AJRKUGY635
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of
Scrabble Entertainment Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements wnder
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

(Referred to in paragraph 2A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Scrabble
Entertainment Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidarice Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to-an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due ta fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of
Scrabble Entertainment Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accounianis
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Rajesh Mehra

Mumbai Partner
26 May 2022 Membership No: 103145
ICAI UDIN: 22103 145AJRKUG9635




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
Rs. in lacs
Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Assets
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 34 82,37 114.83
Right of use assets 3.2 114.74 204.44
Einancial Assets
{i) Investment in subsidiaries and associates 4 4,227.71 3,868.21
(i) Other financial assets 5 367.34 370.26
Income tax assets {net) 6 26768 26913
Deferred tax assels {net) 7 673.96 760.15
Other non-current assets 8 0.40 §.98
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 5,714.20 5,692.00
Current Assets
Inventories 9 59.53 110.70
Financlal Assets
(i} Investments 10 503.89 152161
() Trade receivables 1" 261.08 359.38
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents 12 126.91 5170
{iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8.09 .67
{v) Other financial assets 5 79.88 7661
Other current assets 8 408,39 350,95
Total Current Assets (B} 1,447.77 247863
Total Assets (A+B) 7,161.97 8,170/63
Equity And Liabilities
Equity
) Share capital 13 76.84 76184
iiy Other equity 14 4,666.07 527469
Total Equity (C) 4,742.91 5351163
Liabilities
Non-current Liabllities
Financial liabilities
iy Lease liabilities 28 32.64 152100
iy  Other financial liabilities 18 314.88 37777
Other non-current liabilities 17 54,22 66|82
Provisions 18 29.95 7152
Total Non-current Llabilities (D) 431.89 604411
Current Liabilities
Financial Hiabilities
i} Lease liabilities 28 119.36 10268
iiy Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b} Tota! outstanding dues of c_reditors other than micro 16 1,282.42 1,324]43
enterprises and small enferprises
iiiy Otherfinancial liabilities 15 393.09 407|178
Other current liabilities 17 158.09 35579
Provisions 18 34.41 2431
Total Current Liabilities (E) 1,987.37 2,21499
Total Liabilities (D+E) 2,419.06 2,819.10
Total Equity And Liabilities (C+D+E) 7,164.97 8,170:163
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
ForBSR & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Scrabble Entertalnment Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN : U92190MH2008PLC 178456 J/}cr'(
Rajesh Mehra r/" Rajesh Mishra i
Partner Director
Membership No: 103145 DIN: 00103157 DIN No.: 00003163
S
- O
Y “N/
rmi Shah
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary,
Date: May 26, 2022 Membership No.: A25488




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
Rs. in lags
Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 20(1
Income
Revenue from operations 19 1,830.58 717.94
Other income 20 32.53 40.01
Total Income (I} 1,963.11 817.495
Expenses
Operating direct costs 21 1,016.35 495.13
Cost of consumables and spares consumed 69.90 18.41
Purchases of digital cinema equipment - {6.80)
Purchases of lamp and spares 18.87 1176
Changes in inventories of digital cinema equipments 0.03 1.62
Changes in inventories of lamp and spares 55.79 56.9p
Virtual print fees sharing 663.47 193.42
Other operating direct cost 208.29 219.77
Employee benefits expense 22 356.22 322.08
Other expenses 23 300.75 576.05
Total Expenses (lI) 1,673.32 1,393.211
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (I} - (Il) 289.79 (575.66)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31832 148.70 334.9¢
Finance cost 24 26.00 45.9
Finance income 25 (1,380.96) (101.711)
Profit / (Loss) before tax 1,496.05 (854.8p)
Tax Expense
Current tax - 27.64
Defefred tax charge / (credit) 91.39 {199.96)
Total Tax Expense 91.39 {172.32
Profit f (Loss) for the year 1,404.66 (682.54)
Other Comprehens(ve Income
(i} ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Remeasurement of the defined benefits plans (20.67) 2.51
(i) Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 5.20 (0.58)
Total Comprehensive Income / {Loss) for the year 1,389.19 (680.68)
Earnings per equity share (Face value of share of Rs. 10 each)
(i) Basic 182.84 (88.8B)
(ii) Diluted 182.84 (88.8B)

Significant accounting policles 2

The accpmpanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

ForBS R &Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Scrabble Entertainment Limitad

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN : U92190MH2008PLC 178456

Rajesh Mehra Rajesh Mishra

Partner Director

Membership No: 103145 DIN: 00103157

\l>ml Shah

Company Secretary
Date: May 26, 2022 Membership No.: A25#5§

Place : Mumbai




Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. Share capital (refer note 13)

As at March 31, 2022

Rs. in lacs

Changes in equity

Balance as at | Share Capital due

Changes in equity

Balance as at

. . share capital
April 1, 2021 to prior period during the year March 31, 2022
errors
76.84 - - 76.84
Ag at March 31, 2021 Rs. in lacs

Changes in Equity

Changes in equity

Balance as at | Share Capital due share capital Balance as at
April1,2020 | to prior period are cap March 31, 2021
during the year
errors
76.84 - 76.84

B. Other equity (refer note 14)

Rs. ih lacs
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particular Securities Capital Retained
. redemption .
premium reserve earnings
reserve
As at April 1, 2020 3,370.56 399.99 2,184.80 5,955.35
Loss for the year - - (682.54) {682.54)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 1.88 1.88
As at March 31, 2021 3,370.56 399.99 1,504.14 5,274.69
Profit for the year - - 1,404.66 1,404.66
Dividend on equity shares - - {1,997.81) (1,997.81)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (15.47) {1547}
As at March 31, 2022 3,370.56 399.99 895.52 4,666.07

The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

*

Rajesh Mehra
Partner
Membership No: 103145

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 26, 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Scrabble Entertainment Limited
CIN : U921{90MH2008PLC 178456

Rajesh Mishra o
Director

DIN: 00103157

e

. 9“}{///
N

rmi Shah
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A25458




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Stat t of Cash Fiows for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rs. in lacs

March 31, 2021

Far

March 31, 2022

Cash flow from operating activitios
Profit / {Loss) before tax
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Provision for doubtful debts
Sundry balances written back
Unrealised foraign exchange loss (net)
Profit on sale and write off of fixed assets
Bad debls written-off
MNet gain on cument investments
Gain on lease concession
Interest on cash credit
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Interest expenses on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Interest income
Dividend income

Operating loss before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :
(Decrease) in trade payables
(Decrease) in other financial current liabilities
Increase / {Decrease) in other current liabilities
(Decrease) in non cument provisions
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions
{Decrease) in other non current financial liabilities
{Decrease) in other non current liabilities
Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in curent other financial assets
{Increase) / Decrease in other current assets
Decrease / (Increase) in inventorles
Decrease / (Increase) in non current financial assets loan
Decrease in other non current assets

Cash generated from / (used in) operations

Net direct taxes paid {net of refunds)
Met cash flow from / {used in) operating activities (A}

Gash flows from investing actlvities

Purchase of property, piant and equipment, including intangible and capltal advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Payment of purchase consideration for purchase of associates shares

Purchase of current investments

Proceeds from sate / redemption of current investments

Maturity of bank deposits (with original maturity more than 3 months) {net)

Interast received

Dividends received

Net cash flow from investing activities (B}

Cash flows from / {used in} financing activities
Dividend on equity shares

Repaymenit of lease liabilities

Interest-on cash credit

Net cash flow from / (used In) in financing activities (C)

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C})

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balance with banks:

- in current accsunts
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12)

1,496.05 (854.86}
148.70 334.94
{59.34) 263.61

{204.88) (201.65}

{1.13) {0.18}
0.22 (2.65)
- n.32
{31.62) (39.49)
- {18.31)
- 8.95
2547 34.25
. 1.65
{3.04) (3.56)
{1,346.30 (58.86)
(85.87) {535.34)
(42.01) (305.08)
{14.68) (24.47)
97.18 9298
22.43 {1.04)
(10.58) 4.00
(62.90) (111.45)
(12.79) (29.51)
158,66 77241
{3.26) 4.15
(57.16) {49.90)
51,17 56.39
5.26 0.41
5.58 0.04
71.04 {123.41)
146 (69.02)
72.50 {192.43)
(4.84) (54.12)
0.08 258
(262.50} (375.00)
(2,136.50} (1,694.86)
3,185.84 2,319.26
{2.76} 4,98
3.04 3.73
1,346.30 58.66
2,128.67 265.23
(1,997.81) -
(128.15) (103.74)
- (8.95)
(2,125.96) {112.69)
75.21 (39.88)
51.70 91.59
126.91 51.70
0.87 0.85
126.04 50,85
126.91 51.70

Notes:
1. The above Cash flows stalement has been prepared under the “Indirect Methad” set out in IND AS - 7 "Cash Flow Statements”

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

ForBS R&Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Chartered Accountants Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Fir's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN ; Ug2190MHZ008PLC 173456
C&\QA@(\ Wit

Rajesh Mehra Rajesh Mishra

Partner Director

Membership No: 103145 DiN: 00103157

Place : Mumbai

Date; May 26, 2022

Sushii Agrayval
Diractor

Conpany Secretary
Membership No.: A256458




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Corporate information

Scrabble Entertainment Limited (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India on February 1, 2008. The Company is into the business of
providing digital cinema services. The Company is a subsidiary of UFO Moviez India Limited (‘the Parent
Company'). The registered office and principal place of business of Company is located at Valuable Techno Park,
Plot no 53/1, MIDC, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400093.

The financia! statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 26,
2022,

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

These Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendment rules issued thereafter as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the
relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable, and were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the

directors on May 26, 2022.

2.2 Basis of Preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting pericd, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees in lacs, except were mentioned otherwise.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.3 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with the Ind AS, requires judgements, estimates and
assumptions to be made, that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial
statements; the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimaies could result in outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates
are recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialise. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current
and future periods, !

(i) Judgements: :

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management makes judgements, which héve
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(ii) Estimates and Assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a.sigmifiean] risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asset and liabilities within
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
Mial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
Ay change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond thegz®

es are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. h

x
-K.




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the
economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by the management
periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged
over the remaining usefui life of the assets.

Defined Benefit Obligation:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present vaiue of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date. 1

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets:

Availability of future taxable profit against which the tax losses carried forward can be used as disclosed in
note 2.4(l} below.

Recognition and Measurement of Provisions and Contingencies:

Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources as disclosed in Note 2.4(n) below.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot Pe
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation techniques
including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing falr
values. Judgement includes consideration of input, such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changesiin
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. ;

|

Lease

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessi'pg
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-canceltable period of a lease, together with both periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasanably certain not to exercise that
option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or 10t
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option|to
terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of

alease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being eyglﬂétb 1b_1_‘: .

for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. -,,g:j.
L %
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

= Covid 19

The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-18 in preparation of these standalone
financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption,
recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue recognition owing to changes in
cost budgets of fixed price contracts, impact on leases. The Company has carried out this assessment based
on available internal and external sources of informiation upte the date of approval of these standalone
financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these financial statements and
expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the standalone financial
statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements
owing to the nature and duration of COVID-18.

2.4 Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has made the following
amendments to Ind AS which are effective Aprit 1, 2022:

Based on preliminary assessment, the Company does not expect these amendments to have any significant
impact on its standalone financial statements.

2.5 Amendments to Schedule lll of the Companies Act, 2013

Amendments to Schedule Iii of the Companies Act, 2013 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} issugd
notifications dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the
disclosures required to be made by the Company in its financial statements. These amendments dre
applicable to the Company for the financial year starting April 1, 2021 and applied to the standaione ﬂnan;
statements:

a. Lease liabilities separately disciosed under the head ‘financial liabilities', duly distinguished as current jor
non-current.

b. Certain additiona! disclosures in the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity such as changes in equity
share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period|
. Additional disclosure for shareholding of promoters.

d. Additional disclosure for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payabies, capital work-in-progress.

cific disclosure such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number
of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in the name of the Company, loans and
advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel {KMP) and related parties etc.

f. Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and undisclosed income.

e. Spe

2.6 Summary of significant accounting policies:
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly aftributable cost| of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured refiably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of]

a. Ind AS 109: Annua! Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

b. Ind AS 103: Reference to Conceptual Framework

¢. Ind AS 37: Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
d. Ind AS 16: Proceeds before intended use

al
L

at meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at
. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognised.

{b) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life and is provided
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, or as
estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives, the remaining
asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset. When significant parts of PPE are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

The useful life of PPE is the period over which PPE is expected to be available for use by the Company.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment:

Type of Assets Useful lives (years)
Plant and Equipment comprising of Exhibition 6~-7
Eguipment and Other Equipments
Computer and Printers

Furniture and Fixtures

Office Equipment

Vehicles

(Lo

Except computers, useful life of above property, plant and equipment are different from those prescribed under
Schedule |I. These rates are based on evaluation of useful life by internal technical expert.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leasehold improvements are written off over the period of lease or over a period of 4 years, whichever is lower. .

(c) Impairment of Non-financial assets

Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that a ngn-
financial asset may be impaired. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing off the asset.
The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The impairment loss is recognized if the recoverable
amount of the CGU is higher than its value in use or fair value less cost to sell. Impairment losses are immediately
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective April 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective method.
The Company has applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative impact recognised on the date of inifal
application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, previous period information has not been restated. ‘

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings and Plant & Machinery. The
Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A coniract is, or contaihs,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange ifhor
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether;

() the contract involves the use of an identified asset

Kesco IT Paikd,
Nésco Center,

Westemn Exgress Highway,
GGoregaon (East),
Mumbai - 409 063




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
cerresponding lease liability for ali lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short- term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short-term and leases of low
value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation ahd
impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments ére
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the cairying ameunt to reflect
interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a
change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the
leased assets. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

{e} Inventories

inventories comprise of traded goods, stores and spares and are valued at cost or at net realisable value
whichever is lower. Cost of traded goods, stores and spares is determined on weighted average basis. Cost
include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Stores and spares, which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment, are
accounted as inventories. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. |

{H Revenue recognition
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing digital cinema service.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount tl"inat
reflects the consideration, which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Income from services and sale of goods

e Content Delivery Charges (CDC/VPF) received from distributors of the films from D-Cinema and E-Cinemq is
recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.

o Registration fee is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.

e Revenue from maintenance service fees is recognised on time proportion basis for the period fzlling in the
reporting period.

« Revenue from commission and technical service income Iis recognised in period in which services are
rendered.

« Revenue from sale of goods is recognized upon transfer of control to buyers and no uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived from sale of goods.

¢ Lease rental income on equipment is recognised as mentioned in note 2.3 (e} above

Revenue is measured_based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discouTs,
hance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any. Revenue also excludes taxes

service level 8
collected fréfmsnsiamers=$o
< Cenualﬂwc‘r}gapq
. NothGWng, -
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to
receive cash, and only passage of fime is required, as per confractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue {(“contract liability”) is recognised when there is biilings in excess of revenues.

Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period and none of the contracts include a financing
element.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The
Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction
price could be allocated to a new performance obligation or transaction price of an existing obligation could

undergo a change.

In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other than above, Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amoupt
outstanding and the rate applicable. Interest income is included in the finance income in the statement of profit and

loss.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established.
{g) Foreign currency transaction

Foreign currency transactions and balances

(i) Initial recegnition

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are recorded in the
functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot exchange rgte
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit a d

l.oss. F
{ify Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, gre
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value|in
a foreign cutrency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

{iiiy Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items or on translation of such moneta
Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year or g
previous financial statements, are recognized as income oOr as expenses in the year in which they a

i B Winu'a{q&'
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

{h) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. ;

|
Cash and cash equivalents l
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or
less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks,
which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

|
Financial assets at amortised cost i

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCF)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity
investments not held for trading in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised |n
statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting gl
of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net pf
direct issue cost. w

Impairment of Financial Assets:

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 — Financial Instruments - for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk of trade receivables. The Company calculates the
expected credit losses on trade receivables, using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss
experience.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months 2#0¢
credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the finaf®

has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Financial guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts Issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairmeht
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. r

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership ard
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in oth?r
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. f

|
Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either o
settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities:

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Investments:

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the
Company may, on initial recognition, irevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or at FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity
instrument is recognized as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected fo
measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured gt
FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement pf
Profit and Loss on disposal. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other
income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Fair Value Measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in Subsidiaries
and Associates) at fair value at each balance sheet date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The princip;al or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset jor
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which su
are available to_mew air value, maximizing the use of relevant observabie inputs and minimizing/ g

unobservable

%)
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement fs
unchservable :

For assets and liabilities, that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Compaﬁpy
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
pericd.
The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurément, such éis
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measuremerjt
such as assets held for disposal in discontinued operations.

{i) Employee banefits:

Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. In case of provident fund, both the employee and the Company make monthiy contribution

equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary or a fixed monthly contribution. The monthly
contribution payable by the Company is charged to the Statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carrigd
out at each Balance sheet date, based on legislations as enacted as at the Balance sheet date. The obligation is
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government
securities as at the Balance sheet date.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance sheet as an asset or liability.
Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The actual return of portfolio of plan assets, in excess of yields computed by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obiigation are recognized in other comprehensive income. The
effects of any plan amendments are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Past service, cost is recogniz d
immediately to the extent that the benefits are aiready vested or amortized on a straight-line basis over ﬂ|1e
average period until the benefits become vested.

The gratuity obligation recognized in the Balance sheet represents the present value of the defined beanit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any
asset resulting from the calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the scheme. The gratuity plan is managed by a Life Insurance Corporation of India to which
contributions are made by the Company.

Other long-term employee benefits

valuation is done as per projected unit credit method. The Company presents the compensated absences as a
current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for

12 months after the reporting date.

Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation at year end. The ac’cua%ial

Short-term employee benefits
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

{k) Current Income taxes and deferred tax
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with tﬂe
Income tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws use to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing
differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences pf
earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and the carry forward |of
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be
utilised, except: When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initjal
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. T

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that itlis
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

() Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; a it
reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a

corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(m) Provisions and Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer.
A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the Company.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(n} Employee share based payment:

The Parent Company has floated various Share incentive plans to enable its affiliated entities to attract, reward,
retain and motivate its employees.

Share-based compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period for awards of equity
instruments to employee based on the grant date fait value of those awards expected to ultimately vest.

(o) Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as

an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

{p) Measurement of EBITDA

As per Guidance Note on Division ll- Ind AS Schedule !ll to the Companies Act 2013, the Company has elected to
present eamnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face
of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit from continuing
operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amottization expense, finance

costs, finance income and tax expense.

(q) Segment reporting

The Company does not present segment information in terms of Paragraph 4 of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment Rs. in lacs
Leasehold Plant and Furniture and Office Computer and .
Improvements Equipment Fixtures Equi nt Printars Venicle Total
p quipm u quipme n

Cost
At April 1, 2020 188.28 1,226.65 8.33 23.63 35.47 36.03 1,518.39
Additions - 6.80 491 0.19 1.07 41.18 54.15
Disposals - - - - - (27.75) 27.75)
At March 31, 2021 188.28 1,233.45 13.24 23.82 36.54 49.46 1,544.79
Additions - - - 0.78 3.26 0.80 4.84
Disposals - {66.67) - {0.15) - - 66.82)
At March 31, 2022 188.28 1,166.78 13.24 24.45 39.80 50.26 1,482.81
Accumulated depreciation / amortisation
At April 1, 2020 176.10 951.02 4.73 16.82 29.84 36.02 1,214.63
Charge for the year 12.18 222.97 1.86 3.09 313 0.02 p43.25
On disposals - - - - - (27.82) (27.82)
At March 31, 2021 188.28 1,173.99 6.59 19.91 32.97 8.22 1,429.96
Charge for the year - 42.24 1.82 2.09 2.60 8.24 56.99
On disposals - (66.46) - (0.05) - - {66.51)
At March 31, 2022 188.28 1,149.77 8.4 21.95 35.57 16.46 1,420.44
Net Block
At March 31, 2021 - 59.46 6.65 3.91 3.57 41.24 14.83
At March 31, 2022 - 17.01 4.83 2.50 4.23 33.80 62.37

The Company has not fevalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of- Use Assets) during the year.

3.2 Right to Use Assets { refer note 28} Rs, in lacs
Building Under Lease

Cost

At April 1, 2020 390.09
Additions -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2021 390.09
Additions -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2022 390.09
Accumulated depreclation / amortisation

At April 1, 2020 91.85
Charge for the year 91.70
On disposals -
At March 31, 2021 183.65
Charge for the year 91.70
On disposals -
At March 31, 2022 275.35
Net Block

At March 31, 2021 206,44
At March 31, 2022 114.74

{8) The Company's leases mainly comprise of land and buildings. The Company leases land an
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

PR I

4. investment in ies and’

Rg. in lacs

March 31, 2022

March|31, 2021

Unquoted equity instruments (at cost)
Investment In subsidiaries

750,000 (March 31, 2021: 750,000) Ordinary Sharés of USD 1 each at par fully paid up in Scrabble Entertainment {Mauritius) Limited 400.08 400.02
593,142 (March 31, 2021: 593,142) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Scrabble Digital Limited 270897 ,798.97
5,000 (March 31, 2021: 5,000) Equity Shares in Scrabble Digital Ine. 337.59 337.59
Investment in stap down subsidiary
300 (March 31, 2021: 300} Equity Shares of AED 1,000 each &t par fully paid up in Scrabble Entertainment DMCC 40.83 40.83
Investment in associates
375,000 (March 31, 2021: 375,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Murnbai Movie Studios Private Limited 37.50 37.50
100 (March 31, 2021; 100) Ordinary Shares of AED 1000 each at par fully paid up in Scrabble Digital DMCC 12,73 12.73
Unquoted praference shares (at cost)
Investment in associates
7,500,000 (March 3%, 2021 : 7,500,000 75,00,000 Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Redesmable Preference Shares (NCOCRPS) 600.00 457.50
of Rs. 10 each, pald up of Rs. 8 each in Mumbai Movie Studios Private Limited . .
4,227.71 B,965.21
5. Other fis jal et Rg. in jacs
Non-current GCurrent
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Security deposit to related parties (refer note 29) 276,13 275.66 73.25 7372
Sacurity deposit to others 51.39 5712 6.41 268
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - 0.01 0.22 0.24
Fixed deposit with remaining maturity more than 12 month {refer note 12) 39.82 37.47 - -
367.34 370.26 79.88 76.61
B. Income tax assets _Rs. in lacs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income tax assets (net of provision for taxation Rs. 6,631 20 lacs (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 6,631.20 lacs) 267.68 269.13
267.68 269.13
7. Deferred tax assets {net) Rs. in lacs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 354.685- 402.61
Provision for doubtiul debls and advances 153.05 182.42
impact of expenditure charged 1o the statement of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposas on payment basis i67.88 192.28
Net deferrad tax assets 675.28 7773
B) Deferred tax liability
Fair value of investment (1.32) (17:18}
Nat deferred tax liabilities {1.32) ‘ {17.16)
Deferred taxes {net} §73.96 ] 760.15
Rs. in lacs
noat| CroditiCharge)in the c""d'"(c""g‘:u': ne at
Movement during the year endec March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 statement of Profit and Comprehensive March 31, 2021
1 L]
Loss income ‘
Deferred tax assets [(liabilities) ‘
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 428.28 (25.67) . 402.61
Pravision for doubtful dabt and advances 126.18 56,25 - 182.43 |
Others 6.36 169.38 (0.63) \ 175.11 |
Total 560,82 199.96 0.63) ‘ 760.15 |
Rs. in lacs
naat]  CroditiGharge) in the CraditiCharge) s at
Movement during the year ended March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 statement of Profit and Comprehensive Mardh 3, 2022
Loss Income
Deferred tax assets {liabllities}
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 402.61 {47.96) - 354.65
Provision for doubtful debt and advances 182.43 (29.38} - 153.05
Others 175.11 (14.08) 5.20 166.26
Total T760.15 (91.39) 5.20 §73.96
The major components of income tax expsnsg for the year are as under: .__Rs.Inlacs
: March 31, 2022 Margh 31, 2021
i} Income tax recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss ‘
Current tax
In respect of current year - 27.64
Deferved tax: o150 (199.96)
In respect of current year - ]
Income tax exp recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 91.39 {172.32)

ii) income tax expsnse recognised in OCI
Deferred tax :

Defarred tax expense on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax expense recognised in OCI
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Reconciliation of tax expense and the ting profit for the year is. as under: RE. in lacs
March 31, 2022 March|31, 2021
Profit / {Loss) before tax 1,496.05 (854.86)
Income tax expense calculated at corporate fax rate at 25.168% 25.168%
Comgputed tax expenses 376.52 {215.15}
Impact on account of:
Income exempt from tax (33.21) -
Effect of expenses net allowed for tax purpose {353.77) 184.66
Effect of income which is taxed as special rates {dividend received from foreign subsidiaries) - . (25.79)
Effect of income that is exempted from tax 1046 73.92
Tax expense as per Statement of profit and loss - 27.64
8. Other ts (Unsecured, idered good unless otherwise stated) RE. in lacs
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Prepaid expenses 0.40 5.98 1510 18.83
Cthers - - 2.06 233
0.40 5.88 17.16 18.16
Advances to vendors
Considered good - - 47,90 1681
Credit impaired - - - -
. . 47.90 1561
Lass ; Allowance for doubtful advances - - -
- - 47,90 15.61
Loans and advances to employees - - 2.37 0.01
Balances with statutory f government authorities - - 40.98 23.96
Goods angd Service Tax {GST} credit receivable - - 29558 252.21
- - 391.23 331.79
0.40 5.98 408.39 350.95
9. Inventories (Valued at cost or net realisable vaiue, whichever is lower) As. In lacs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Traded Goods
Digital cinema equipments 172 +75
Lamps 8.68 64.47
Consumables and spares 49.13 4448
59.53 110.70
Hs. in lacs

10, Current Investments

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Carried at FVTPL
Unquoted mutual funds
Investment in mutual funds

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unqueted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment In value of investments
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Notes to financial ents as at and for the year ended March 3, 2022
14.Trade receivables R$. in lacs
Current
March 31, 2022 March [31, 2021
Trade receivables considered good ~Secured - N
Trade receivables considered good -unsecured 261.08 359,39
Less: Allowarnca for expected cradit loss - -
Trade receivables with have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables -Credit impaired 608.12 72483
Less: Allowance for credit impairmernt {608.12) (724.83}
Total 261.08 359,39
For details pertaining to retated party receivable refer note 29
Trade Recelvables ageing schedule *
As at March 31, 2022 R$. in lacs
Outstanding for follawin, riods from dus date of payment
Particulars.
Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i} Undispuled Trade receivables — considered good 67.26 4.81 0.68 139.09 - 211.84
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credi risk - - - - - -
iy Undisputed Trade Recaivables — credit impaired - 1.83 7.93 18.63 94.87 123.26
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good " - - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade Recaivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
{vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — credi impaired 8.67 041 1.81 iB87.78 306.18 484.85
Total 75.83 7.08 10.42 325.50 401.08 §19.85
Add : Trade receivables - Unbilied 49.25
Trade receivables $869.20
Less . Allowance for doubtful trade receivable (608.12
Trade receivables {Net of allowance for doubtful trade receivable) 261.08
As at March 3t, 2021 Rs. in lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than § months| 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tqtal
) Undisputed Trade receivables — cansidered good 12429 5.88 211.34 - - ‘ 341.49
{ii} Undisputed Trade Receivabies — which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
{#i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — cradit impaired - 23 1156.58 68.31 81.97 268.77
{iv) Dispuled Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
indcease in credit risk - - - . - -
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables = credit impaired - - 143.94 106.09 206.03 456.06
‘Total 124.2% 8.77 470.86 174.40 288.00 ) 1,066.32
‘Add : Trade receivables - Unbilled i7.90
Trade raceivables 1,084.22
Less ; Allowance for doubtful trade receivable (724.83
Trade receivables (Net of all 1ce for doubtful trade receivable) 359.39
« Trade receivables ageing is calculated from the date of nvoice
12. Gash and bank balances Rs. in lacs
Non-currgnt Current

March 31,2022 _

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

« in current accounts

Caish on hand

Other bank balances

- Deposils with remaining maturity for less than 12 months
- Daposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months

— Margin money deposit witht remairing maturity for less than 12 months
- Margin money deposit with remaining maturity for more than 12 months

Amount disciesed under nen-current financial assets (refer note 5)

Margin money deposits:
Issuing bank guarantees to various State Governments

14th Fiar,
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- - 126.04 £0.85

- = 0.87 0.85

- - 126,91 51.70

- - 6.09 567
35.85 33.50 - -

- - 2.00 2.00
3.97 397 - -

35.82 37.47 8.08 7.67

(39.82) (37.47)
- - 135.00 59,37

1o comply with the Sales Tax 1 VAT Registration formalities.




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial staternents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022
13, Share capitat Rs. in lacs
i March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Autharized share capital
1,000,000 {March 31, 2024: 1,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 100.00 10000
104,300 (March 31, 2021: 104,300 ) 6% Optionally Converiible Redeemable Preference Shares (QCRPS) of Rs.1,150 each 1,199.45 1,199.45
lssued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
75&,39_? (March 31, 2024; 768,387) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 76.84 76.84
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 76.84 76:34
{a) Reconciliation of the shares sulstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares Rs, in lacs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
_ No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Atthe beglnm_ng of the year 768,387 76.84 768,387 76.84
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 768,387 76.84 788,387 76.84
(b} Details of sharehalders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Name of the shareholder No. % holding In the class No. % holding in the
. class
Equity shares of Rs.10gach fully paid
UFQ Moviez India Limited 768,387 100.00% 768,387 100.00%
Of the above, beiow sharas are haid by nomines ’
Name of Sharsholders Shareholdin
{No. of Shares})
Mr. Sanjay Gaikwad (As Nomines of UFQ} i0
Mr. Kapil Agarwal {As Nominae of UFQ) 10
Mr. Ashish Malushte {As Nominee of UFQ) 10
Mr. Rajesh Mishra (As Nominee of UFQ) 10
Mr. Pankaj Jaysinh (As Nominee of UFQ) 10!
Mr. Vishnu Patel {As Nomines of UFQ) 10
Mr. Sushil Agrawal (As Nominee of UFO) 10
Total 70
As per records of tha Company, including its register of sharehelders/members, the above shareholding représents both legal and benaficial cwnerships of shares.
{¢) Shares held by holding company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below : )
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2022 Marfh 31, 2021
UFO Maviez tndia Limited, the hoiding company ‘
768,387 (March 31, 2021 : 768 387) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 16,684 76.84
(d) Details of shares heid by promaters
As at 31 March 2022
Sr No. of shares at the . No. of shares at the end 9% change during
No. Promoter name beginning of the year Change during the year of the year % of Tota! Shares the year
1 [UFO Moviez India Limited 768,387 - 768,387 100% 0%]
As at 31 March 2021
Sr No, of shares at the . No. of shares at the end % ¢harjge duwring
No. Promoter name beginning of the year Change during the year of the year % of Total Shares the year
1 JUFO Moviez India Limited 768,387 - 768,387 100% | 0%
{e} Terms { Rights attached to équity shares
Voting rights : I
Each holder of equily shares having value of Rs.10 per equily share is entitled to'one vote per equity share.
Rights pertaining to repayment of capital |
In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enititied 10 receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distcibution will b in propertion to
the number of equity shares held by the sharehoiders.
Terms J Rights attached to preference shares : )
The Company during the year ended March 31, 2014 redeemed 6% Optionally Convertibie Redeemable Preferenca Shares (OCRPS) having par value of Rs. 1,150 each issued to the Investor.
The OGRPS. shall rank senior to all other issued and putstanding securities of the Company including Equity Shares.
Dividend rights :
The OCRPS holders have right to receive dividend in preference to all other shareholders as and whaen declared by the Board of Disactors.
tf} Terms of conversion/ redemption of QCRPS
The DCRPS shall be redeemed at the option of the Investor in three equal installments at the end'of third, fourth and fifth year from date of subseription at par.
The Investor shall have the option to require the Company to redeem all the OCRPS af any time prior to the matusity date under certain specified conditions as per tha Shareholders’ Agreement,
The OCRPS are corvertible into equity shares, at the option of the investor at any time prior to expiry of one year from the date of each subscrigtion in the ratio of 1:1.
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Scrabble Entertalnment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year snded March 31, 2022

14. Other equity Rs. in lacs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Securities premium account
Balanice as per the last financial statements 3,370.56 3,370.56
Add: premium on issué of equity shates - -
Closing balance 3,370.58 3,370.56
Capital redemption reserve
Batance as per the lasi financial statements 399.99 399.99
Add: Transterred fram surplus in the staternent of profit and loss on redemption of preference shares - -
Closing balance 398.99 399.99
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements 1,504.14 2,164.80
Add: Empioyes stock options expired transferred - -
1.504.14 2,184.80
Profit ! (Loss) for the year 1,389,189 (680.66)
Dpening Ind AS adjustment 116 - -
Profit available for appropriation 2,893.33 1,504.14
Less: Appropriation
Dividend on'equity shares {1,997.81) -
Closing balance 895.51 1,504.14
4,666,068 5,274.69

Teotal other equity

a) Securities premium reserve : Securities premiuim resarve is credited when shares arerissued at premium.
off equity related expenses like underwriting costs, eic.

It.can be used to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares of debentures, write-

b) Capltal redemption reserve : As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free resarves or securities premium. A sum equal to the-nominal

value of the shares so purchased is transterred to capital redemption resefve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisians of section 59 of the Companies Act, 2013

¢) Retained eamings : Retained earning are the prefit that the Company has sarned till date, less any dividends or other distribution paid 1o the shareholders.

15. Other financlal liabilities Rs. in lacs
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 Mardh 31, 2021
Financlal Habilities at amortised cost
Deposits from customers 306.14 3689.03 389.88 402,83
Deposit from related parties {refer note 28) 7.04 7.04 - -
Other security deposit 1.70 1.70 - B
Salary and reimbursement payable - - 3.2% 495
314.88 37177 363.09 407.78
16. Trade Payable Rs._ln lacs
March 31, 2022 Mare¢h 31, 2021

2} Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 31}

1,324.43

b} Total outsianding dues of creditors other than micro entarprises and small enterprises * 1.282.42
1,282.42 1,324.43

* For details pertaining 1o related party payable refer note 29

Trade Payables aging schedule (Outstanding from invoice date)

As at March 31, 2022 Rs. In lacs

Particulars Lass than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i} MSME - - - - .

(i) Cthers 655.50 203.81 59.55 363.86 1,282.42

(ili} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -

{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

Total 655.50 203.51 59.55 363.86 1,282.42

As at March 31, 2021 Rs. in lacs

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME - - - - -

(iiy Others 703.62 90.48 63,92 466.43 1,324.43

(ili) Disputed Hues - MSME - - - - -

{iv} Disputed dues - Others - - - -

Total 703.62 90.46 63.92 486.43
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

17. Other liabilities Rs. in lacs
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 3%, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advance from customers - - 95.87 245,52
Defemed revenue on AMC sarvicas £B4.22 6%.46 18.11 81.98
Deferred lease rental revenue - 5.36 - -
Daferred Content Dislivery Charge-{COC/VPF) revenug - - 7.22 2.95
Statutory dues * - - 36.89 2533
54.22 86.82 158.09 355.79
* Statutery dues payable includes
Tax deducted at source 3217 2260
Provident fund 4,58 260
ESIC 0.07 0.05
Professional tax .07 0.08
Labour Welfare Fund - Liability . .
36.89 25.33
18. Provisions Rs. in lacs
Long-term Short-term
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 27) 29.95 7.52 - -
Provision for compensated absences - - 33.14 2239
Provision - Others:
Provision for Warranties - - 1.27 1.92
20.95 7.52 34.41 24.31

Provision for warranty

A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products soid during the year, based on past experial
provisions, The product are generally covered under the warranty period ranging from 4 year to & years.

nce of the lavel of repairs and returns. The table below gives information about movement in warranty

Rs. in [acs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Al the beginning of the year 1.82 264
Arising during the year - -
Utilised during the year (0.65) (0.72)
At the end of the year 1.27 1.92
Current pertion 0.49 054
0.78 1.38

Nan-current portion
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022
19. Revenue from operations Rs. in Jacs|
March 31, 2022  March 31, 202
Sale of services
Content delivery charges (CDC/VPF) - D - Cinema 1,185.34 320.68
Lease rental income - E-Cinema - 0.22
Lease rental income: - D-Clnema 121.43 47.96]
Maintenance service fee 159.48 114.28
1,466.26 49214
Sale of products
lamp sale 89.12 73.69
Sale of digital cinema equipment 643 (19.72
Sale of spares 73.88 29.78
169.44 83,75
Other operating income
Sundry baiances written back 294.88 201.65)
204.88 201.65)
1,930.58 777.54)
20. Other income Rs, in lacs
March 31, 2022  March 31, 202
Profit on sale of fixed assels - 2.65
Miscellaneous incorne * 30.75 36.13
Foreign exchange gain {net) 1.78 1.23)
32.53 40,01
* Miscellaneous income include gain on lease concession of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 18.31 lacs)
21, Operating direct costs Rs. in lacs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 202
Repairs and maintenance exhibition equipments 150.43 126.22
Content processing charges 24.82 86.00
Virtual print fee sharing 663.47 183.42
Rent on equipments 33,05 7.55
871.77 413.19
Consumables and spares
Inventories at the beginning of the year 44,48 45.30
Add : Purchases 74.55 17.59
Less : Inventories at the end of the year {49.13) {44.48
69.90 18.41
Purchase of digital cinema equipment - (6.80
Purchase of lamps 18.87 11.78]
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of digital clnema equipments
Inventories at the beginning of the year 1.75 3.37
Inventories at the end of the year {1.72} (1,75
0.03 1.62
{Increasejdecrease in inventories of lamps and spares
Inventories at the beginning of the year 64.47 121.42)
Inventories at the end of the year {8.68) (64.47)
55.79 56.95
1,016.36 495.13
22. Employee bensfits expense Rs. in lags)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 202
Salaries, wages and bonus 305.86 283.76
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 27) 18.97 15.33
Gratuity expense {refer note 27) 751 13.69
Compensated absences (refer note 27} 15.97 3.86
Staff welfara expenses 5.39
- -
~
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Scrabbie Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as atand

for the year ended March 31, 2022

25. Finance income

23. Other expenges Rs. in lads
March 31,2022  March 31, 2081
Eleclricity charges 13.30 9.
Freight and forwarding charges 8.79 2.
Rent 3436 26.
Rates and taxes 11.09 2.3
Insurance 12.5¢ 31,
Repairs and maintenance 19.36 10,
Corporate soclal responsibility expenses (refer note 37} 50.23 88.
Advertising and sales promotion 0.10 "
Travelling and conveyance 10.35 5.
Communication costs 4.43 4.8
Printing and stationery 1.71 14
Legal, professional and consuitancy charges 116.48 103.0
Directors sitting fees 4.38 3.3
Payment to auditor {refer detalls bejow) 8.50 6.8D
Feoreign exchange loss (net) -
Bad debls / advances written off 57.37 40.44
Less: Provision ulilised (57.37) - (40123
Loss on sale and write off of fixed assets (nat) 0.22 -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances - 263.6
Miscellaneous expenses 4.86 5.35
300,75 576.05
Payment to auditor Rs. in lacg
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
As auditor:
Audit fee 5.00 5.0E
Tax audit fee 1.00 1.0
In other capacity:
Other services (certification fees) 2.00 -
‘Out of packet expenses 0.50 0.89
B.50 6.89
-
24, Finance cost Rs. in lacy
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2031
Interest on cash credit - 8.9
Interest expenses on right to use 25.47 34.2%
Interest expenses on financial fiabllities carried at amortised cost - 1.9
Bank charges 0.53 0.83
26.00 45,91
Rs. in lacs

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interest income on
Bank deposits
Others

Dividend income (refer note 29}
from current investments
from associate

frotn subsidiary/step down subsidiary

Naet gain on current investments *

* Includes fair value {loss) / gain of Rs. {62.95) lacs (March 31, 2021 : Rs. {254.37) lacs}
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abble Entertainment Limited
1es to standalons financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

. Earnings per share (EPS)

e following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: Rs. in lac:
‘articular March 31, 2022 March 31, 202
3asic
Net profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss 1,404,866 (682,54
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 768,387 768,387
Earnings per share {Rs) {Face value of Rs. 10 each) 18281 (88.83
Diluted )
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS 1.404 .66 (682.54
Weightad average number of equily shares in calculating basic EPS 768,387 768,387
Earnings per share {Rs) (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 182.81 (38.83
27. Gratuity and other post-emplovment benefit plans
a) Defined contribution plan
The Company has recognised and included in Note 22 "contribution to provident fund and other funds” expenses towards the defined contribution plan as under:
Rs. in lacy
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 202
Contribution to provident fund {Govemment) 1825 14.72
Administration charge - Provident Fund 0.7 0.81
18.98 15.33

b} Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The company has a defined benefil gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each campleted yea

of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the staternent of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised In the balance sheet for the respective

pians.
Change In the defined benefit obligation {"DBO"™) and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2022 Rs. in lacs
Particulars Defined bensfit Fair value of plan assets Bepefit liability
obligation §
As at April 1, 2021 53.78 4626 7.52
Service cost 7.03 - 703
Net interest expensa 2,99 - 2.99
Interest income - 2.51 {2.51
Recognised in statement of profit or loss 10,02 2.51 7.51
Benefit paid (7.28) {7.28) -
Remeasurement gains/losses in other comprehensive income
Return on plan assets {exchiding amounts included in net interest expanse) - {0.10) 0.10
Actuarial changes arising from changes In financial assumptions {1.68) - (1.68,
Experience adiustments 22.25 - 22.25
Receoanised in other comprehensive income 20.57 {0.10) 20.67
Contribution by employer - 575 (5.75,
As at March 31, 2022 77.09 47.14 29.95
Change in the defined benefit obligation ("DB0") and fair value lan assots as at March 31, 2021 Rs. in lacs
Particulars Deﬁn::“b z':;:f.: Fair value of plan assets Benefit liabjlity
As at April 1. 2020 42,72 34.17 8.55
Service cost 1314 - 13.14
Netinterest expense 273 - 273
Interest income - 2.18 {2.18)
Recognised in statement of profit or loss 15.87 _2.18 13.69
Benefit paid {1.07) (1.07) -
R srement gains/l in other comprehensive income
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense} - {1.23) 1.23
Actuarial changes arising from changes In financial assumptions (2.40) - (2.40)
Experience adjustments {1.34) - (1.34)
Recognised in other comprehensive income {3.74) {1.23) {2.61)
Contribution by emplaver - 12.21 (12.21)
As at March 31, 2021 53.78 46.26 7.52
The principzl assumptions used in determining gratuity are as shown below:
Particuiars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 8.70% 6.30%
Future salary increase 6.00% NIL for the first year and
6% thereafter
Employee turnover 13.10% 13.10%
Retirement age (vears} 58 58
8.00% 8.00%

Expected returns on asseds
Mortality rate

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take acsount of inflation, senierity, promotion and other rejevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

A quantitative sensivity analysis for gignificant assumption is shown below . In lacs
Particulars oeo pBO
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discaint rate (-1%} 75.08 -50.63
Discaount rate (+1%} (66.85) {44,58)
Salary growth rate (-1%} (67.43) (44.62)
Salary growth rate {+1%) 74.38 50.36
Agtrition rate {-0.5%) 67,98 47.02
Attrition rate {+0.5%) {72.41) (47.54)

Methods and assumptions used in preparing sensitivity and their limitations: The liability was projected by changing cartain assumptions and the total liability post the change in such assumptions have
been captured in the table above. This sensivities are based on change in cne single assumption, other assumptions, being constant. '

Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in fubure years RE. In lacs
Particulars March 31, 2022 Man:d 31; 2021
within) the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) - -
Tatal L -
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is & years (March 31, 2021: 6 vears)

in lacs
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): March 31, 2022 March|31, 2021
1 vear 12,23 6.54
2105 years 36.05 2231
6to 10 years 26.85 19.90
Mere to 10 years. 37.33 27.40
The major categories of plan assets as a perce the fajr [an assatls are as follows: Rs. In facs
Gratuity __ March 31, 2022 March|31, 2021
Investments with insurer {Life Insurance Carporation Limited) 100% 100%

Provision in respect of leave encashment benefits has been made based on actuerial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at the Balance sheet date using Projected Unit Credit method. During
the year Rs 15.97 lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs 3.86 lacs) is recognised as an éxpenss in the Staterent of profil and loss.

28, Leases

Company as lessee
The Company's significant leasing arrangemeant comprises of land and buildings taken on lease for office and warehouse facilities. Thess leases are cancellable lease agresments that are renewable on a

pericdic basis at the option of both the lessor and the lessae.

. in Jacs
Particulars March 31, 2022 March|31, 2021
Lease payment racognised in Statement of profit and loss {Short term & low value leases) 67.41 34.29
67.41 34.29
Future lease rental expense will be recognised in the Statement of profit and loss of subsequent vears as foilows:
RS, in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Due not later than one vear 141.67 885
Due later than one year but not later than five vears 38.56 47.22
Later than five years - -
180.23 56.07
The movement in lease liabilities during the year is as follows : R$. In lacs
Particulars March 31, 2022 March[31, 2021
Opening at the beginning 254,68 342.48
Finanee coet accrued during the peried 2547 34.25
Rent concessions récagnised in the statement of profit and loss - (18.31)
Payment for lease liabilities {128.15) {103.74)
Balance at the end 152.00 254.68
The break-up of current and non-current loasse liabilities is as follows : Rs. in lacs
Par March 31, 2022 March |31, 2021
Current lease ligbilities 119,36 102.68_
Non-curent lease liabilities 32.64 152.00
152.00 254.68
The details regarding the § maturities of lease liabllities on an undi inted basis are as follows : R$- in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2022 March |31, 2021
Due not later than ona year 134.58 12815
Due later than one yaar but not later than five years 34.04 168.60
Later than five years - -
168,60 296.75
Company as lessor
The Company has leased out Digital Cinema Equipment to theatres, franchisees. These laasas are cancellable lease agreaments that are renewable on a periodic basis at the up_tion of both the lgssor and
the lessea. The leasa term is generally for 5 1o 10 years. The Company as well as the theatres and franchisses have an option of términating this lease arangament any time during the tenure of the |ease
as per the provisions of the lease agreemant.
in lacs
Particulars _ March 31, 2022 March|37, 2021
Lease incoma recognised in Statemsnt of profit and loss 321,42 4817
w
Particulars March 31, 2022 rch|3q, 2021
Gross carrying amount 1,997.02 15,053-59
Accumulated depraciation 1,982.36 2,013.22
14.65 50.47

Depreciation recognized in the statement of profit and loss
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

29. Related party disclosures
1. Names of related parties where transactions have taken place during the year

Hotding company

Subsidiaries of holding company

Subsidiarles

Step down subsidiary

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Associate of the company

Asscciate of a subsidiary company

Key management personnel

UFO Moviez India Limited

Nova Cinemaz Private Limited (erstwhile known as Valuable Digital Screens
Private Limited)
United Film Organisers Nepal Private Limited, Nepal (till March 3, p022)
Zinglin Media Private Limited

Plexigo Entertainment Private Lirmited

UFOQ Lanka Private Limited, Sri Lanka

UFQ Seftware Technologies Private Limited

Scrabble Entertainment {Mauritius) Limited
Scrabble Digital Inc
Scrabble Digital Limited

Scrabbie Entertalnment DMCC
Scrabble Entertainment Lebanon Sarl
Scrabbkle Entertainment (Israel) Limited

Scrabble Digital DMCC
Mumbai Movie Studios Private Limited

Scrabble Ventures LLC , USA
Scrabble Ventures, S. de R.L. de C.V, Mexico

Mr. 5. Madhavan - independent and Non executive director
Ms. Lynn C'Souza - Independent and Mon executive director
Ms. Urmi Shah - Company Secretary

Enterprises owned of significantly imMuenced by key management persennel or their Valuable Media Private Limited
relatives
2. Details of transactions with related parties during the year
Rs. in lacs
Sr. No Partj ) March 31, 2022 Maych 31, 2021
Name of the parties / Nature of expenses and income
1 Holdihg company
UFO Moviez India Limited
A Income
iy Content Delivery Charge (CDCAPF) {D-Cinema) 193.89 2915
iy Rental income 19.94 225
ili) Miscellaneous income - Rent (Warehouse) 9.27 484
B Expenses
i} Rent on eguipments 33.05 7.55.
i} Virtual print fee sharing 110.42 13.99
lify Rent 12.76 6.19
iv} Reimbursement of expense 0.53 0.30
[ Others
i) Security deposit paid - 1.75
ily Dividend paid 1,997.81 -
2 Subsidiary of the company {including step down subsidiaries)
A |Scrabble Digital Limited
i) Mistellaneous income - Rent (Warehouse) 14.98 7.28
iiy Content processing charges 24.82 86.00
lify Sale of products 6.62 -
B Scrabble Entertainment DMCC
i) Dividend income 100,88 -
c Scrabble Entertainment (Mauritius) Limited
i) Dividend income 1,113.45 N
D Scrabble Digital INC
iy Dividend Income 94.53 -
3 Associate of the company
A Scrabble Digital DMCC
i} Dividend income 745 58.66
B Mumbai Movie Studios Private Limited
i) Purchase of equity shares - 37.50
ii} Purchase / call amount paid for preference share (NCOCRPS) 262.50 337.50
4 Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their as
A Valuable Media Private Limited
1) Miscellaneous income - Rent (Warehouse) 0.66 0.33
5 Independent and non executive dj r
A Director sitting fees
i) Ms. Lynn De §ouza 1.88 1.63
i 2.50 1.75
& Co, !
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to standalong financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3. Balance outstanding at the year end

Rs. in lacs
Sr.No Par:;:ulars March 31, 2022] Margh 31, 2021
1
A UFO Moviez India Limited
i} Amount payable 50.91 -
it} Security deposit given 346.38 349.38
iii) Security deposit roceived 1.65 1.65
iv) Amount receivable - 4.26
v} Unbilied revenue 49,26 9.48
vi} Unbilled expenses 1,75 8.01
2 Subsidiades companies
A Scrabble Digita! Limited
i} Amount payabie 202.77 267.87
ii) Security deposit recaived 5.27 527
iiiy Unkilled expenses {7.30} 61.82
3 g5 owped or significantly infl
A Valuable Media Private Limited
i) Amount receivable - 0.06
ii} Security deposit payable 0.12 Q.12

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. The assassment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial

position of the related party and the market i which the related parly operates. Quistanding balances at year the year-end are unsecured.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company: Rs. in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2022 Margh 31, 2021
Shert Term emploves benefits 11.69 851

*key Managerial Personnel and Relativés of promoters who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benefits and other long term employee benefits recognised as peér
Ind As -19- Employee Benefits in the financial statements .As these employee benefils are lump sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above.js they are

determined of an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

30, Capltal and other commitments Rs. in lacs

Particulars March 31, 2022 Margh 31, 2021

Capital commitments - i

(estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and net provided for (net of advances))

Other commitments 90.30 29.30
90.30 29.30

31. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Under the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 MSMED') which came in to force from October 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to dues t¢ Micro and

Small enterprises. On the basis of information and records available with the Management, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to Micro and Small enterprisos:

Rs. in lacs
Particular March 31, 2022 Margh 31, 2021

Principal ameunt due and remaining unpaid

Interest due on abovae and the unpaid interest -
Interest paid
Payment made beyond the appointed day during the-year -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years -

32. Financial instrs - A ting classificati and fair value measurement

Thie fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at tha amount, at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced pr
liquidation sale.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financlal assets and liabilities.

The carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities by categories as at March 31, 2022 were as follows:

. in lacs
Fair value through
Particulars Amortised cost” comp‘:':‘hfmlva F’:{:‘;i't":rt::::’h Total carrying value | Hierarchy
incoms
Financial Assets
Investments in subsidiaries 4,227,711 - - 4,22T.71
Loans. receivables - B . -
Investments - - 503.89 503.89 | Level 2
Trade receivables 261,08 - - 261,08
Cash and cash equivalents 126.91 - - 126.81
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8.09 - - 8.09
Gther financial assets 447.23 - - 447.23
Total 5,071.02 - 503.89 5,674.91
Financial Liakilities ——
Lease liabilities 152,00 - . 152,00 /-;_%E-f' = N
Trade payables 1,262.42 - - 1,282.42 %,}?., ERS
Other financial liahililies 707.98 . - 707.96 L X3
Total 2,142.38 - - 214238 | [{++7¢ \ ]
A S
"9) z/"
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Datails for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Rs. in lacs
Fair value through
Particulars Amortised cost* cnmpor?h'; nsive Fm;r::il::; t::::gh Total camrying value Hierarchy
income
Financial Assets
Investments in subsidiarias 3,965.21 - - 3,985.21
Loans receivables - - - -
Investments - - 1.521.61 1,521.61 | Level 2
Trade receivables 359.39 - - 359,39
Cash and cash equivaients §1,70 - - £1.70
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 7.67 - - 767
QOther financiat assets 446.87 - - 448.87
Total 4,830.84 - 1,521.81 6,352.45
Financial Liabilities
Lease liabitties 254.68 - - 254,88
Trade payables 1,324.43 - - 1,324.43
Other financiat liabilities 785.54 - - 785.54
Total 2,364.65 - - 2,384.85

* The Company considers that the carrying amounts of these financial instruments recognised in the financial statements approximates its fair values.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Leval 2 during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

33. Financial risk management - Objectives and policies
The Company's financiat lisbilities comprise mainly of irade payables and other payables. The Company's financial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other ba
banks, loans, trade receivables and other reteivables.

The GCompany is exposed to market risk , credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's Senior Management oversees the managemant of these risks. The Company's senior management dlotg
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework through relevant policies and procadures for the Company. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for mary
of these risks, which are summarised beiow:

1. Market risk
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markst prices, Market risk comprises two types of risks: interest g
currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, invastments and deposits, loans and derivative financial instruments.

a) interest rate risk :
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s expesure to the risk of

market interest rates relaiss primarily to the long-tarm debt cbligations with fleating interest rates.

fances with

yrmines the
aging each

te risk and

changes in

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of fixed and variable rate leans and borowings wherever feasible. Tha Company does not have borrowings therefore is not lexposed to

interest rate risk.

b) Gurrency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate becausa of the change in foreign currency exchange rates. The Majerity of the Company's rgvenue and
axpense are in Indian Rupeas , with the remainder denominsted in US Dollars. Management Gonsiders currency risk to be low and does not hedge its own currency risks.
The Compary regularly evaluates exchange rates exposure arising from foreign currency transactions for taking appropriate actions,

Rs. In lacs
Outstanding foreign currancy exposure as at March 31, 2022 Mardh 31, 2021
Export debtors 69.42 74.67
usD 0.92 1.03
Import creditors - 59.14
usp - 0.82
Advances to Supplier 38.14 -
usb 0.51 -
Advance from customers 1269 36.03
usn 0.17 .50
Cash balances 07 089
UsD 0.06 Q.06

The following tables demenstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with ail other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before 1

ix 1s due te

changes in the fair value of menetary assets and liabilities:
Rs. in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2022 Margh 31, 2021
1% increasa in foreign exchange rate : 0.9% (©.20)
[0.96) 0.20

1% (decrease )in foreign exchange rate:

Centrat B Wing 2nd
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2. Creditrisk :

Gredit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligatiens. Cradit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk-of gefault and
the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as wel as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlied by analysing credit imit and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom thej credit has

been granted after obtaining necessary approval for credit.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade rec

deposits and other financial assets .

Exposure to credit rigk:

The carrying ameunt of financial assels represents the maximum credit

5t, 2021 respectively as per the fable below.

eivables, unbilled revenue, investments, derivative financial instruments, cash and cash eqguivalents, bank

exposure. The maximum credit risk exposure to credit risk was Rs 427.15 lacs and Rs.447.92 lacs as at March 31, 2022 and March

Particulars

March 31, 2022

. In lacs
March 31, 2021

Balance with banks including bank deposits
Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Total

165,85 88.32
261.08 350.39

0.22 0.21
42715 447.92

Trade receivables and unibilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company by continuously mofitering the
credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.
Cradit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Credit fisk refars to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial joss. The maximum éxposure {o the
unbilied revenue, which are typically unsecured and are derived from reven

ue from custorers. Credit risk has always been managed

credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receiyables. and
by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credif limits and

continuousiy monitoring the creditworthiness of the customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the nommal course of business. The Company uses the expected credit loss mode] to gssess any

required allowances; and uses a provision metrix to compuie the axpe:
credit information 1o the extent available. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents Is limit
high ratings assigned by international and credit rating agencies, None of the other financia

The Company basis their assessment believes that the probabili
changes, if any, in both counterparty credit isk and own credit ris

3. Liquidity risk

cted credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. This.matrix takes into account crédit reports and other related
ed as the Gompany generally invest in deposits with banks and liquid mutual fund unit with financial instifutions with
| assets of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk.

ty of the occumrence of their forecasted transactions is not impacted by COVID-19 pandemic. The Company has also considered the effect of
k while assessing risk pertaining te financial assets. The Company continues to believe that there is no impact on such assets.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the the Company will encounter difficulty in raising fuhds to meet commitment associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another finan tial assets.
Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quichly at close to its fair vaiue.

The Company has an astablished liquidity risk management framework for managing its sl
liquidity risk arises primarily frém mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabili
from its operations. The Company has no outstandihg bank borrowings. The Company believes that the working capital is suffisient to me

The table below analyses financial liabilities of the Company into relévant maturity Companyings
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

hort term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements, The company’s gxposure to
ties. The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and tie cash flow that 9 generated
ot its current requirements, Accordingly no liquidity risk is parceived.

based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amount disclosed

Rs. in lacs
Particulars Less than 1 year Betwaen ;::r: Over 5 years Total
At March 31, 2022
Lease liabiliies 119.36 32.64 152.00
Trade payables 1,282.42 - - 1,282.42
Other financial abilifies 393.09 314.88 - 707.97
At March 31, 2021
Leasea fiabilities 102.68 152.00 254,68
Trade payables 1,324.43 - - 1,324.43
Dther financial liabiliies 407.78 37777 - 785.55
34. Unbilled receivables and Contract liabilities
The movement in unbilied receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers: Rs. in lacs
Unpilled receivables March 31, 2022 Mar¢h 31, 2021
QOpening balance 17.80 435
Less: Revenue recognised thal was included in the contract liablities at the beginning of the year (17.80) (3.87)
Add: Invoices raised far which no revenue is recognised during the year 49.26 17.42
Closing balance 49.26 17.80
Rs. in lacs
Contract liabilities {Advance or deferred incoms) March 31, 2022 Mar¢h 31, 2021
Opening balance 146.39 181.04
Less: Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities at the baginning of the year (84.93) (58.69)
Add: Invoices raised for which no revenue is recognised during the year 1B8.09 24.00
79.55 146.39

Closing balance

The Company receives payments from customers based upon contractual billing schedules. Ac
includes amounts Telated to our contractual right 1o consideration for completed performance objecti

revenue. Coniract liabilities include payments received In advance of performance under the contract, an

d are realised with the associated revenue recognised under the contract.

counts receivable are recorded when the right fo consideration becomes unconditional. Corjract assets
ves not yetinveiced and deferred contract acquisition costs, which are amorfised along with thg associated

Reconciliation of revenue recognised In the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price Rs. in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2022 Margh 31, 2021
Revenue from contracts with customers (as per Statement of profit a RN S 1,930.58 717.54
Add: Discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions /i ‘\\):I bl b2 w\ . -
Add / (Less): Unbilled revenue adjustments 3 7 (35.49) (21.09)
i fee \ 1,895.09 756.45
Contracted price with the customers 14 Floot, = ’ ;—-41 805, y
The Company does not have revenue from individual ¢ of t&¢al reYgnue '1\&::‘\ 1 &y
. Hosth L'WY, . /
esen 1T Parkd, \&V)\- o *
MNesco Ceter, \@9 VH,.}Q_‘
wWestern Express Heghway, e
Geregaon (Eastl, ——
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
35. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. Tha primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure the gaing

concem operation and te maintain an efficient capital struciure to support the corporate strategy and makimise shareholder value.
The capital sirutture is governed by policies approved by the-Board of Directors and is monitored by various metrics,

The Company maintains focus on capital efficiency without incurfing) material

indebledness and have negative working capital and positive free cash flows. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments i the. light of changes in econamic envircnmant and the

reguirements of the financial covenants.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

36. Events subsequent {o balance sheat date
There are no events subsequent to Baiance Sheet date

37. Corporate soclal responsibilities

As par section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and sules therein, the Parent company is required to spend at least 2% of average net profit of past three years. towards Corporate Soci

(CSR). Detaiis of corporate social responsibilities gxpenditures are as follows:
The areas of CSR activities are on providing healthcare, education and rehabilitation for underprivileged-girls and children from the rural village.

al Responsibility

A CSR committee Has been formed by the company as par thé Act. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on these activilias wtiich are specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013;
Details of CSR expenditure: . in lacs
March 31, 2022 Marchj31, 2021
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 50.23 88.50
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the vear 50.23 28.580
&) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2022; In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i) Constructionfacquisition of any asset 351 113.74 117.22
{iy On purpases other than (i) above 699 435 11.34
R$. In lacs
d) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2021 In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i) Censtructionfacquisition of any asset 582 69.62 7544
{i) On purposes other than (i) above 436 871 13.07
Rg. in lacs
&) Details related to spent / unspent oblinations March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
iy Contribution to Public Trust 10.50 10.18
iy Gortribution to Charitable Trust
it} Unspent amount in refation ta:
Ongoing project 118.08 18.32
Other than onpoing proiect
Details of ongoina profect and other than ongoing project
In case of S. 135(8) {Ongoing Project)
. Amount spent .
Opening Balance Amount required to be spent | during the year Closing Balance
. during the year From Company's | From Separate CSR N In Separate CSR Unspent
With Company In Separate CSR Unspent Alc bank Afc Unspent Ale With Company Ade
78.32 50.23 264 7.88 47.59 70.47
In case of 8. 135{5) (Other than ongoing project)
Amount deposited in Specified
Fund of Sch. Vil within 6 Amount required to be spent Amount spent
Opening Balance months during the year during the year Closing Balance

* The Gompany has transferred unspent amount of Rs. 47.58 lacs in a special bank account opened for tha purpose of Corporate Social
years from the date of transfer i.e. April 7, 2022

8. Details of loans given, investment made and guarantee give coversd uis 186(4} of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Dirsctors of the Company in its
had made an investment of Rs. 37.50 lacs, subscribing 1o 3,75,000 number of equity shares

the year end March 31, 2021, the Company :
Cumulative Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCOCRPS"} of Rs. 10 sach, the paid up value of Rs. 4.5 per share,

Further on Decembar 08, 2021, the Company made

Cornpany holds 30.74% stake in MMSPL, which has been treated as an associate for the purpose of accounting

14t Floor,
7 Central B Wieg 2nd
North & Wing,
Hesco [T Parkd,
Nesca Center,
Western Express Higmway.
Goregacn (East),
Wiumibai - 400 0

meeting held on October 12, 2020, had approved an investment of up to Rs. BOO lacs in Mumbai Movie Studios Private Limited (MMSPL). Conses
of Rs, 10 each and Rs. 337 lacs, subseribing to 75,008,000 Non-

additional investment of Rs. 262.50 lacs towards the sacond call of Re. 3.5 per share for each of 7,500,000 NC;

Responsibility and will be spending the said amount wWithin three

quently, til

the
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39. Ratio Analysis and its
Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 % change Reason for vgrlance
Variance is due to lower
Current ratio Current Assets Cumvent Liabilities 0.73 112 +35% | current investmets during
the ysar
Debt- Equity Ratic Total Debt Shareholders Equity - - - Not Applicable
Eamings for debt service = Net | Debt service = Interest & Lease Inctreas; ': ':"e"“e and
Debt Service Coverage ratio praofit after taxes + Mon-cash Payments + Principal 12.12 {3.35) -462% "l; Fom;r: ir:p;gv::ey;?;
operating expenses Repayments ihe ratio
Net profit during the year
. Net Profits after taxes — . + ;
Return on Equity rafic Preference Dividend Average Shargholder's Equity 0.07 (0.03) -332%|led to an improvement in
the ratio.
Inventory Tumover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 022 on 94% ;z;ﬁ:‘:&ma tobe
Revenue growthalong
. . |Net credit sales = Gross credit . with higher efficiency on
T: ] 4
rade Receivable Turnover Ratic gales - sales ratum Average Trade Receivable 1.56 0.22 602% realisation resutted in an
improverment in the ratio.
Net credil purchases = Gros$ Increase Is primaiily on
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio  |credit purchases - purchase Average Trade Payables 0.25 0.18 39%{account of increase in
retum purchases.
MNegative working capital
N Net sales = Total sales - sales  [Working capital = Current assets due to lower curfent
t ' - ;
Net Capital Tummover Ratio return = Current liabiliies (3.58) 285 221% investments impicted the
ratio.
Increase in revehue and
Net Prefit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales 0.73 (0.88) 183% Net profit during ithe yaar
rétum lead te an impropement in
the ratic.
. Capital Employed = Tangible Net Improvement is pn
Relum on Caphtal Employed E‘;’g’;"gs befora interestand |y + Total Debt + Deferred 26.37 (4.53) -582% | account of profithbility
A Tax Liability during the year.
Variance is due higher
Return on Investment Interest {Finance Income) Investment 0.29 0.02 1474% | dividend Income received
during the year.
40, Additional Regulatory Information
(iy Borrowing secured against cument assets
The Company did not have 2ny leans or borrowings from any lender during the year

{iis The Company has nol been declared wilful defaulter by any
(iliy The Company do not have any fransactions with the companies s!
{iv} The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed
) The Cormpany do not have any Benami property, whe:
(vi) The Company do not have any charges ar satisfaction
(vily The Gompany have not fraded or invested in Crypto gurrency of Virtual
(viiiy The Company do not have any such transacti
Income Tax Act, 1861 {such as, search or survey or any o

(ix) WUtilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or
(a) directly or indiracily lend or invest i other p

rg any procee:

under the Companies Act, 2013,

invested funds 1o any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forei
arsons or entities Identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike to oron behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiarias.

The Gompany has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies),
lend or invest in other persuns or entities identified
the like from or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

(&) directty or indirectly,

(b) provide any guarantee, security or

41, Impact of covid-19

The uncertainty on account of the Covid-
the end of June/beginning of July 2021. H
Procedures (S0Ps} in place, The third wave, w
lasted 1l the first week of February 2022, A majority of the Cinemas
restictions but with fimited or no content. Resfrictions on cinema opera
major States acress India, filmgoers started revisiting cinemas in larg
wilnessed recovery and an improved performance by the end of financia

The management of the Company has
Based on the above, the management and the Board of

i

ied out an

42. Code on social security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Seclal Security,

Code on Social Security, 2020 on
are notified and will give appropriate impact in it financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effectiv,

has refeased draft rules for the

assess the impact and its evaluation once the sukject rules

detenmine the financial iImpact are published.

1dth Fiogr,
Central 8 Wing ang
North ¢ Wing,
Nesco IT pagy
" Nesto Center
E500N Expresg Highway,
Goregagn {Fastl,
Murai - agig g3

10 outbreak continued to have an adverse effect across the
owevar, various State Govermments only aliowed Cinemas to re-ope:
hich was due to Omicron, a new variant of Covid, was much shorter compared to the previgus two
were operational during early Q4 (with the exczption of Delhi and
tions started easing from the 1st week of February'22. With the
e numbers, thus giving a big boost to the senti
| year, The Company continued with its strategy

world including India, in

n from July-November 2021 in a

bank or financial institution or government ot any govemnmment authority.
truck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

4 or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments undl the

the first half of this financial year. The second wave started tapering
phased mannar with restrictions and Standary
waves. |t started during the last week of Decembd
which were shut during January 2022} with various capagcity
lifting of Covid related occupancy restrictions from mid-Margh 22 in the
ry. Conseguently, the thealrical exhibition i
of keeping a check on controllable costs and having adequate liquidity.

Haryana,

ments of the exhibition indust

ding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
which ls yet 1o be reqistered with ROC beyend the statutory period.
Currency during the financial year.

on which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surmendere
ther relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1981).

ign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
Beneficiaries™ by or on behalf of the Company

including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wiiing or othenwise) that the Comps
in any manner whatsoever (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party

ny shall:

loff towards
Operating
r 2021 and

hdustry has

Directors believe that the Company would be able to meet its financial obligations in the foreseeable future.
the long-term drivers of business are intact and does not anticipate any material medium to long-team risks to the business.

aof the appropriateness of the going-concem assumplion, impairment of assets and other rélated aspects.
Accordingly, management blieves that

2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Laty
November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the MipfpGy
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43, Previous period figures. have been re-grouped / re-classified to conform to below requirements of the amended Schedule [l to the Companies Act, 2013 effective 1st April, 2021:
{a) Security deposits regrouped under 'Other financial assets’ {Note &} which were earlier part of ‘Loans'.

(B) Unbilled receivables regrouped under ‘Frade receivables’ (Note 11)

The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Standaloné Financiat Stataments.
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